QA-228 -
Benjamin Lee Farm circa 1820-40,
Church Hill vicinity circa 1830-50
Private

The earliest part of the frame house on the Benjamin

Lee Farm was constructed circa 1820-40 and consisted of

a story-and-a-half dwelling with a side passage, single
pile plan and a gambrel roof. Shortly thereafter, circa
1830~50, the house was enlarged two bays to the west

to form a center passage plan. The story-and-loft
kitchen wing was probably added at the same time to the
east gable wall of the original house. A fire caused
extensive damage to the roof and east gable wall of the
main house a few years ago, but fortunately the building
was repaired. Significant details include the late
Federal and Greek Revival interior woodwork, the original
closed~-string stair, and the early louvered window
opening on the north wall of the wing.




MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

QA-228
MAGI # 1802285404

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC

AND/OR COMMON
Benjamin Lee Farm

BiLocATION

STREET & NUMBER

— Southeast side Marvland Route 300

CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Church Hill X_ vicINITY OF lst
STATE . COUNTY
arvland Queen Anne's
EYCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT __PUBLIC X 0CCUPIED }_cAGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
X BUILDING(S) X PRIVATE —UNOCCUPIED —_COMMERCIAL  __PARK
— STRUCTURE —_BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS —EDUCATIONAL X _PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT _IN PROCESS A YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
—_BEING CONSIDERED —YES: UNRESTRICTED —_INDUSTRIAL —_TRANSPORTATION
o —NQ —MILITARY — OTHER:
e OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
Benjamin Lee etal Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER
RT#1, Box 33
CITY. TOWN STATE , Z1p code
Sudlersville ___ VICINITY OF Maryland 21668

{9 LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Liber #: CWC 113
gggg:?(uosfbews,ETc.Queen Anne's County Courthouse Folio #: 678
STREET & NUMBER
Courthouse Sqguare
CITY, TOWN STATE
Centreville Maryland
K3 REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
DATE
. —FEDERAL _STATE __COUNTY __LOCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS
.. CITY. TOWN STATE




DESCRIPTION (h-338

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
ZGooD —RUINS XALTERED —MOVED DATE

—FAIR

__UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {iF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Benjamin Lee Farm is located on the
southeast side of Maryland Route 300, approximately
2 1/2 miles northeast of Church Hill and 1 1/2
miles southwest of the intersection of Route 300
and U.S. Route 30l. The gravel driveway that leads
in from Route 300 continues through the farm to the
old Barclay Road.

The early house on the Lee Farm is of frame
construction, 1 1/2 stories high, five bays wide
and one room deep with flush brick chimneys at
each end of the gambrel roof. A small, frame
story-and-loft wing projects from the east gable
of the main house.

The pr1nc1pal facade of the house faces south
The door w1th four 1¥ght transomvls 1ocated in the
center bay, flanked by two large 6/6 windows to.
the west and two 9/6 W1ndows to the east Foﬁr
6/6 shed roaf dormers are asymmetr1cally ranged
across the second story. The building rests on
a continuous brick foundation and is now covered
with wood shingle siding. The eaves are boxed
in, the roof is covered with asphault shingle

siding.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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CONTiNUATION SHEET

7.1 DESCRIPTION

On the west gable wall, two large 6/6 windows
flanking the chimney on the first floor are the oniy
openings. The shingle siding and rakeboards are 20th
century; the chimney shaft has been rebuilt above tﬁe
roof. _

'bn the rear facade, the door is offset slightly
to west of center due to the interiér stair, with two
large 6/6 windows to the west and a single $/6 window
.in the far east bay.  There are four 6/6 shed goof
dormer windows on the second floor. The slightly
asymmetrical spacing of the windows, the $/6 sash in
the east bay,'and a seam in the brickwork to the west
of the rear door suggest that the house originally
consisted of the three bays to the east and was
- enlarged by two bays circa 1830 to 1850. The foundation
sbelow-the three éast bays has been reworked and two
modern cellar windows have been installed. The siding,
cornicé, and roof match the front facade.

‘'The majority of the east gable wall is concealed
by the wing. The siding and rakeboards are. replaced:
the chimney shaft has been rebuilt and reduced in size.

The frame wing is about two feet lower than the
héuse and rests on large field stones and brick piers.

On the south facade, there are 9/6 windows in the center
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7.2 DESCRIFTION

and west bays: the east bay is not expressed. The
siding is wood shingle; the cornice is boxed in with
plain boards. The roof is asphault shingle,

On the east gable wall of the Wing, there is a
door 1n the south bay of the first floor and a large
6/6 w1ndow offset to left of center in the upper gable.

The flush gable chimney has been completely rebuilt,

‘A one story lean-to porch supported with posts set in

the ground stretches across the gable wall and contlnues
around the north facade of the wing.

' The north facade of the wing is set back approki— o
mately two feet from the main house. There isnaldoor’
in the west bay and a 4/4 window in the east bay.

The sash of this window is set in sideways, and the
frame has routed grooves for louvered shutter slats.

One slat survives at the top of the frame. The size

and proportion of this slat indicates it is a relatively
early feature,

The interior of the main houée'consists of a center
passage plan. The original section includes the passage
and the east room, while the floor of the wést roon is
several inches higher than‘the passage and dates to the
mid-19th century enlargement, -

" The stair rises against the east wall of the stair

hall to an intermediate landing at the north end. Tt

g
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7.3 DESCRIPTION

is a closed-string stair with simple square newel
posté, a molded rail, and square-sectidn balusters.
The area below the carriage piece is paneled with
narrow, beaded vertical boards. There is a small
cioset under the stair; the door is now gone. Wrought
H hiﬁges survive on this door jamb, but they are secured
with wire.nails. Early trim in the passage includes
the architrave trim on the front and rear door and on
the door to the east room. Beaded baseboard survives
throughout the passage. The early archltrave trim
consists of a beaded fascia board w1th an unusual

complex backband con51st1ng of a cove and an ovolo

-separated by fillets. The four«nanel front and rear

doors are typlcal of the latter half of the 19th century,
the door to the east room is Greek Rev1va1 'w1th two
Qertical panels with beveled, "pyrémidal"_suffa;es.
The dobr in the west wall of the passagé was cut in
when the west room was added. It is framed with simple,
rabbeted trim and.plain corner blocks, typmical of the
mid-19th century. The door is a relatively unusual
six-panel door with two small équare panels in the
center,

In the east room, the fireplace on the east gable
wall has been replaced with a small stove chimney.

There is a door to the right of the chiﬁney leading to
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7.4 DESCRIPTION

the wing and a four-door built-in cupboard to the
left. This cupboérd has- a banded Greek Revival

architrave with plain corner blocks; the upper doors

_each have two tall narrow panels side by side, a

feature typical of the Greek Revival period. The

door to the wing is also an example of a two-panel

Greek Revival door. The window trim in this part of

-the house consists of a beaded fascia with an ogee

‘backband. There are two types of chairrail in this

room,.- On the south-wall, there is a simple twapiece
chairrail éonsisting of a beaded fascia with a'haifF
round shelf nosing above. On the west'and néftﬁ Qallé,
the shelf posing is flat on the bottom and is supported
by a band of cove/astragal molding. . Modern paneling
conceals the fascia piece from view. Beaded baseboard
has also survived in this room, but the floor has been
replaced. |

In the west room of the first floor, there is a.
fireplace with a simple, mid-19tﬁ century mantel centered
on the west gable wall, flanked by large 6/6 windows.

All of the windows and the door are trimmed with routed,
mid-19th century architrave trim; the baseboard is plain,
The first floor plan is repeated on the second
floor, but the south end of the stair hall is partitioned

to form a small, unheated chamber. The northeast
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7.5 DESCRIPTION

corner of the hall has also been partitioned to form
a small closet. The stair balustrade is much plainer
around the second floor landing, but it appears to

be original. A serious fire three or four years ago
caused considerable damage on the second floor. The

damage is heaviest around the east chimney, presumably

‘the source of the fire. Early details surviving on the

second floor of the original section of the house include

Federal period, fully raised six-panel doors ftom the
passage into the passage chamber and the east chamber.
The doors and dormer window openlngs are framed with
plain beaded trim; the baseboa:d.ls also:beaded. It
should be noted that the two'Eederal.deOrs'are hung
on unmarked, learly butt hinges, while;the fourfpanel,
mid-19th century doors to the passage closet and to
the west room are hung on Baldwin Patent butt hlnges
typical of circa 1840.

In the west room, there is a small fireplace on
the west gable wall with a simple Greek Revival mantel.
To the right is a closet with rabbeted Greek trim and
a fouf—panel door hung on Baldwin hinges. The dormer
trim is beaded: the baseboard is plain.

A small trap door in the ceiling of the passage
allows access to the roof. This tfap door is framed

with the same early 19th century trim used as the
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7.6 DESCRIPTION

architrave in the first floor passage. The fire damage
is clearly evident in the attic. The east end of the
roof and the east gable wall have been completely rebuilt
with modern materials. Above the passage, the rafters .
are‘badly charred and have been reinférced, To the
west, the roof is charred but intact. The roof of the
original section was constructed with common rafters
joined at theridge with pegged mortise-and-tenon
joints. The original west gable wall framing has been
taken out but remains in the attic. The gable-studs
were nailed in place with machine nails and the gable
wall was sheathed with plain, random width weatherboards.
The siding was nailed with maéhine nails: there is no
evidence of earlier nail holes or'sidingo The roof
of the later secfion_is framed in the same fashion but
with one inch collars scabbed onto eaéh rafter pair
with machine nails.

There is a full ceilar undér the three east bays
of fhe main house. An original bulkhead cellar entrance
in the east gable wall leads up into fhe northwest
corner of the wing. Early siding on the east gable
wall of the house is visible from the cellar stairs.
It is plain random width siding secured with machine
nails.,.

Part of the arched base survives from the east
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chimney, centered on the east wall of the cellar. The
ceiling joists are hewn and are coated with whitewash.

The first floor of the wing is divided into a large

_kitchen to the east, a .short hall éndApantry to the

southweét, and an enclosed cellar stair to the northwest.
The hall and pantry are formed by narrow, beaded vertical
board partitions. The cellar stair is enclosed with

plain vertical boards and a batten door. The kitchen

. has plain vertical wainscotihg below a simple chairrail.

Modérn paneling above the chairrail and a néw.qeiling
haQe been.added in recent years. There is a_SmaiI
closet with a Victorian door in the northeasézcofner’
of the kitchen, adjacent to the modern stove chimney.
Early plaster over ﬁhe cellar stairs is applied to
machine lathing with méchine nails.

The second floor of the wing consists of a single
room that has been completely renovated following the
fire, Early seams in the east end of the floor suggest

a stair location and larger chimney: a seam in the

west end dates to the fire,

Outbuildings

-

To the northeast of the kitchen wing is a frame

meat house, 12 feet wide and 14 feet long. The pitched

gable roof is oriented on a north-south axis with the
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7.8 DESCRIPTION

door centered in the south gable wall. The building
is constructed of heavy .circular-sawn timber and is
covered with vertical board-and-batten siding and a
wood shingle roof. It probably dates to the third
qﬁérter of the 19th century.

| To the east of the meat house is a 10 by 12 foot
dairy, pfdbably dating to the early 20th century.

Other 20th century farm buildings, including a

small barn, two implement sheds and three metal

silos, are located to the east of tbe'house.;
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The earliest part of the frame house on the

Benjamin Lee Farm was constructed circa 1820-40

and consisted of a story-and-a-half dwelling with

a side passage, single pile plan and a gambrel

roof., Shortly thereafter, circa 1830-50, the house

was enlarged two bays to the west to form a center

. passage plan. The story-and-loft kitchen wing

was probably added at the same time to the east
gable wall of the original house. A fire caused

extensive damage to the roof and east gable wall

of the main house a few years ago, but fortunately

the building was repaired. Significant details

include the late Federal and Greek Revival interior

woodwork, the original closed-string stair, and

the early louvered window opening on the north wall

of the wing.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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QA-228 Benjamin Lee Farm
Church Hill vicinity
Orlando Ridout V 1981
Rear facade from north
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Benjamin Lee Farm
Church Hill vicinity
Orlando Ridout Vv 1981
Front facade from south
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